
 

Board of Commissioners 
606 5th Ave. SW, Room #131 

Roseau, MN 56751 
Phone:  218-463-4248 

Fax:  218-463-3252
 

 

To schedule an appointment with the Board, please contact the County Coordinator at 218-463-4248 
County Coordinator’s e-mail address: trish.klein@co.roseau.mn.us 
Roseau County Home Page Address:  http://www.co.roseau.mn.us/ 

 

District 1, Alan Johnston, Chair - District 2, Jack Swanson -  
District 3, Roger Falk  - District 4, Russell Walker - District 5, Mark Foldesi, Vice-Chair 

 
An Equal Opportunity Employer 

AGENDA 
Tuesday, July 13, 2010 8:30 a.m. 

Notice is hereby given that the Board of Commissioners of Roseau County will meet in session on July 13, 2010 at 8:30 am in the 
Roseau County Courthouse, Room 110, Roseau, MN, at which time the following matters will come before the Board: 

  
 
8:30 Call to Order  

1. Presentation of Colors 
2. Approve Agenda 
 

8:35 Comments and Announcements 
 
8:45 Consent Agenda 

1. Approve Proceedings 
2. Approve Bills 
  

9:00 Janeen Stenso, Red River Basin Commission – Todd Miller, Roseau River Watershed 
 1. Update on Red Board and Red River Basin Commission 
 
9:30 Committee Reports 
 
10:00 Highway Department Engineers Report 
 1. Approve four contracts for bid opening on Monday, July 12, 2010: 

a.  S.A.P. 68-599-90 (Box Culvert Installation) 
b.  S.A.P. 68-599-91 (Box Culvert Installation) 
c.   S.A.P. 68-676-05 (Mill Bit. Surface, Agg. Base, & Bit Surfacing) 
d.  C.P. 08:04 (Grading, Agg. Base, & Bit. Surfacing) 
 

10:15 Break 
10:30 Troy Schroeder, Northwest Regional Development Transportation Planner 
 and Wade Miller, Department of Natural Resources, Division of Trails and Waterways 
 1. Roles and Responsibilities of the Trail Sponsor and Snowmobile Club 
 2. Regional Rail Authority 
 
11:00 Jeff Pelowski, Safety Committee  
 1. Approve Three Year Safety & Health Proposal with Safety Compliance Services 
 
11:15 Discussion 

1. Pohlitz Township Property Removal from Ditch #17 
 2. Beito Property 
 3. NRWD Area Arts Council  
 4. PILT Task Force Meeting  
 
11:45 Future Agenda Items 
12:00 Adjourn 

ammiller
Typewritten Text

ammiller
Typewritten Text
2.  Approve BWSR Contract

ammiller
Typewritten Text

ammiller
Typewritten Text

ammiller
Typewritten Text



ITEM #

* Required Fields

Comm. Motion Motion

(First) (Second) Yes No Abstain
Swanson Passed
Johnston
Foldesi Failed
Falk

Walker Tabled

*Other Consideration:

 

Coordinator's Office Use (Do Not Write Below)

Date Received:

 
Comments:

*Resolution (Wording should reflect the intent of the Board vote):

Teresa Klein, Board Clerk  ATTEST:

Board Action:

Vote Vote Result

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

*Person Responsible for Request *Department *Board Meeting Date

*Subject Title (As it will appear on the agenda):

Approve Proceedings

Consent 1

Attached are the proceedings from the July 7, 2010 Board Meeting.  Please review carefully 
and advise of any changes.

*Financial Consideration:

 

*Background (Provide sufficient detail of the subject):

*Legal Consideration:

Klein, Trish Coordinator Jul 13 2010



 

 

PROCEEDINGS OF THE ROSEAU COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 July 7, 2010 
 

The Board of Commissioners of Roseau County, Minnesota met in the Courthouse in 
the City of Roseau, Minnesota on Tuesday, June 8, 2010 at 8:30 a.m.  
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
 The meeting was called to order at 8:30 a.m. by County Board Chairman Alan 
Johnston. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.  Commissioners present were Roger Falk, 
Alan Johnston, Jack Swanson, and Russell Walker.  Commissioner Foldesi was excused. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
 Regional Rail Authority was added to discussion.  A motion to approve the agenda 
was made by Commissioner Swanson, seconded by Commissioner Walker, and carried 
unanimously. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  

 
A motion to adopt the Consent Agenda was made by Commissioner Walker, 

seconded by Commissioner Falk and carried unanimously. 
 
The Board, by adoption of its Consent Agenda, approved Proceedings from the  

6-29-10 Regular Board Meeting; approved meeting minutes of the 6-22-10 SD 72 and SD95 
Joint Informational Meeting; authorized attendance at the Water Management Summit July 
12, 2010; authorized Commissioner Swanson’s participation on the Collaborative 
Governance Council; authorized Commissioner Attendance at Summer REDESIGN 
Workshops; Approved Joint Powers Agreement for the Administration of Federal HSIP 
Safety Grant and approved Agreement to provide administrative services for the early 
retiree reinsurance program. 
 
AUDITOR’S OFFICE – INTERIM AUDITOR JOHN HOSCHEID AND DEPUTY AUDITOR 
JOHN HUSS 
 
 Interim Auditor John Hoscheid and Deputy Auditor Patty Ignaszewski met with the 
Board to set a canvassing Board date and time.  Mr. Hoscheid informed the Board that he 
will not be able to attend the canvassing Board and that Deputy Auditor Patty Ignaszewski 
will be acting on his behalf at this meeting.  A motion to set the Primary Election Canvassing 
Board date for Friday, August 13, 2010 at 3:00 p.m. was made by Commissioner Swanson, 
seconded by Commissioner Walker and carried unanimously. 
 
 The Board discussed appointing two Commissioners to serve on the Canvassing 
Board.  Commissioners Johnston and Walker are not eligible as they are both on the 
primary ballot.  A motion to appoint Commissioners Swanson and Falk to the Canvassing 
Board, with Commissioner Foldesi serving as an alternate, was made by Commissioner 
Walker, seconded by Commissioner Johnston and carried unanimously. 
 
 Interim Auditor Hoscheid and Deputy Auditor Huss discussed 2011 budget 
preparations with the Board.  Mr. Huss will be sending out an instruction memo along with a 



 

 

worksheet to Department Heads so that they may begin their 2011 budget preparations.  A 
Department Head Meeting is scheduled for August 10, 2010 for budget reviews by each 
department.  The Board also requested the Auditor’s office develop an excel spreadsheet 
that will allow the Commissioners to view different budgeting scenarios.   
 
 Roseau County Prevention Coalition’s Coordinator Brenda Arntzen and Coalition 
Director Tammie Doebler met with the Board to review the Coalition’s year-end report and 
requested approval of this report and their 4th quarter fiscal statement.  A motion to approve 
the Roseau County Prevention Coalition’s year-end report and 4th quarter fiscal statement 
was made by Commissioner Swanson, seconded by Commissioner Walker and carried 
unanimously. 
 
 Upon motion carried, the Board adjourned the regular meeting at 10:45 a.m.  The 
next regular meeting of the Board is scheduled for July 13, 2010 at 8:30 a.m.   
 
 
Attest: Date: _________________________  
 
_____________________________________ ________________________  
Teresa Klein, Board Clerk Alan Johnston, Chair 
Roseau County, Minnesota  Board of County Commissioners 
 Roseau County, Minnesota 



ITEM #

* Required Fields

Comm. Motion Motion

(First) (Second) Yes No Abstain
Swanson Passed
Johnston
Foldesi Failed
Falk

Walker Tabled

*Other Consideration:

 

Coordinator's Office Use (Do Not Write Below)

Date Received:

 
Comments:

*Resolution (Wording should reflect the intent of the Board vote):

Teresa Klein, Board Clerk  ATTEST:

Board Action:

Vote Vote Result

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

*Person Responsible for Request *Department *Board Meeting Date

*Subject Title (As it will appear on the agenda):

Approve Bills

Consent 2

Attached you will find warrants for your review and approval.

*Financial Consideration:

 

*Background (Provide sufficient detail of the subject):

*Legal Consideration:

Hoscheid, John Auditor Jul 13 2010













































































































ITEM #

* Required Fields

Comm. Motion Motion

(First) (Second) Yes No Abstain
Swanson Passed
Johnston
Foldesi Failed
Falk

Walker Tabled

9:00 a.m. Appt

Janeen Stenso and Todd Miller will meet with the Board to give an update on the Red Board 
and Red River Basin Commission.  Attached is the Consent Report from the June 3, 2010 
Red Board Meeting.

*Financial Consideration:

 

*Background (Provide sufficient detail of the subject):

*Legal Consideration:

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

*Person Responsible for Request *Department *Board Meeting Date

*Subject Title (As it will appear on the agenda):

Janeen Stenso, Red River Basin Commission - Todd Miller, Roseau River Watershed

Teresa Klein, Board Clerk  ATTEST:

Board Action:

Vote Vote Result

*Other Consideration:

 

Coordinator's Office Use (Do Not Write Below)

Date Received:

 
Comments:

*Resolution (Wording should reflect the intent of the Board vote):

Klein, Trish Coordinator Jul 13 2010



CONSENT REPORT 

3 June 2010 Board Meeting 

Devils Lake: Court House – Lower Level 

 

I. RRBC ACTIVITIES 

a. Administrative/Board 

b. Executive Committee 

i. The Executive Committee meets the third Thursday of every month at 8:30 AM (usually 

phone).  The 20 May 2010 Executive/Oversight Committee minutes will be reviewed.  The 

Executive Committee is the only Board committee that can act on behalf of the Board.  It 

consists of 15 Board members. 

c. Finance Committee 

i. Meets as necessary, usually to assist with budget issues.  It consists of local, provincial and 

state funders.  

d. Human Resource Committee 

i. Meets as necessary to assist with staff issues.  It consists of the Executive Committee 

Officers and one other from each jurisdiction.  

e. Legislative Committee 

i. This committee assists where able and as needed to inform legislators about RRB issues.  

f. Partnership Activities 

i. See Board minutes and reports. 

 

II. NRFP ACTIVITIES 

a. GOAL # 1:  Watershed Approach 

i. University of Manitoba:  Source Water Protection Governance Project:  This project has 

received funding.  It is a 4 year project that will look at and construct an enhanced 

explanation of governance, which reveals the inherent complexities and difficulties 

associated with cooperative, shared decision-making processes. 

ii. Assiniboine River Project:  The report is completed and distributed.  Local leaders in that 

area indicated in October 2008 at a workshop hosted by RRBC that they would like to form a 

group, on their own, with RRBC assistance and using RRBC as a model.  A subcommittee that 

was formed has met to discuss another gathering (conference) to explore ways to form, etc.  

RRBC is coordinating this effort (Board action in November 2008).  The one-day conference 

that was being planned for 29 October 2009 has been postponed until 2010.  MB, ND, and 

& SK want more time at the Provincial & State level to dialogue.  If possible, the meeting 

will be held in the spring.  

iii. Winnipeg River Project:  Is similar to the Assiniboine River project and RRBC has contracted 

with Eastman Regional Development Inc., to contact, meet with, and gather local leaders in 

the Winnipeg River Basin and provide a report on their interest and any strategies that 

might emerge on a Winnipeg River Basin group.  This effort is on hold waiting for further 

feedback from MB-WS related to discussions with the Province of Ontario.  

iv. MN Joint Powers Board:  This Board meets quarterly for presentations and discussions and 

is facilitated by RRBC.   



v. Roseau River International Watershed:  The RRIW covers the Watershed District and 

County in MN along the Roseau River and the RM’s and First Nation in MB.  They meet 

regularly and RRBC facilitates. 

vi. Pembina River Basin Advisory Board:  The PRBAB meets quarterly if needed and is now 

working on 2-D Modeling.  RRBC facilitates. 

vii. RRBC North Chapter:  The RRBC North Chapter brings together the RM’s on the northern 

and eastern side of Winnipeg.  They meet around 10 times a year for presentations and 

discussions and RRBC facilitates. 

viii. RRBC South Chapter:  The RRBC South Chapter brings together RM’s on the south side of 

Winnipeg and west of the Red River for presentations and discussions.  They just organized 

in 2010 and will meet quarterly.  RRBC will facilitate. 

ix. South Valley Initiative:  The SVI meets quarterly bringing together local government units 

from SD, MN, and ND in the southern portion of the basin. 

b. GOAL # 2: Integration 

i. PIC:  The Plan Implementation Committee meets 4 times a year (or as needed).  

ii. IISD Project Water Innovation Centre:  IISD Water Innovation Centre was launched at their 

Annual Board of Directors’ Dinner June 11, 2009.  The RRBC Executive Director, a couple of 

staff, and several Board members attended.  The $4 million dollar Centre will link markets 

and environmental technologies to community-based watershed management.  RRBC voted 

to support this Centre.  

iii. IISD/RRBC Building Capacity for Multi-Purpose Land & Water Investment (formerly called 

Building Capacity for Ecological Infrastructure Investments) in the RRB:  RRBC received 

from Environment Canada ($55,000) and we have a contract with RRBC/IISD (for $35,000) 

for their portion of the project.  The grant is part of the Lake Winnipeg Basin Stewardship 

Fund from Environment Canada.  The joint RRBC/IISD project team has met and a working 

committee met in July to assist in the project.  This project will look at Land and Water 

Investment opportunities in a RRB sub-watershed and additional partners and sources of 

funding.  New partners are being added to the project: MCEA, NW MN Partnership, IWI, and 

others will be explored.  What local leaders would hope to gain from the project is also 

being explored to guide the effort.  The report to EC is now finalized.  Additional funding 

proposals are also in progress.  A June workshop is being planned. 

c. GOAL # 3: Technical and Data for Decision Makers 

i. All activity under this goal is related to specific goals and is project related.  For example, the 

development of Mike 11 for Mainstem Modeling. RRBC is using funds received on the Long 

Term Flood Solutions Project to match federal US Army Corps of Engineers funds.  COE funds 

will help with decision making tools at IWI, LTFS Phase II contract with Barr Engineering, 

Sub-Watershed HMS Modeling, and a Basin Economic Analysis if needed.   

d. GOAL # 4: Education and Information 

i. NRFP Outreach:  Visits to local units of government through a Bush Foundation funded 

project in MN, ND, & SD is underway from the Moorhead office.  Staff in the Winnipeg office 

also does NRFP outreach. We are currently working to enter NRFP data into our Sharepoint 

database and link it to our web site.  This information will also be entered into the Lake 

Winnipeg web portal. 

ii. NRFP: Resolution of Support:  Over 153 local units of government have signed. 



iii. First Nation Outreach:  RRBC Board member Hotain and staff had some outreach meetings 

with First Nations around and near Lake Winnipeg.  More meetings are planned in MB and 

contact with MN, ND, and SD Tribal Governments is part of our outreach strategies.   

iv. Ripple Effect: Newspapers:  Articles continue to be sent to all RRB newspapers every other 

week.  Please check with your local newspaper to see if they are receiving the articles and 

encourage their use if they are not showing up in the newspaper. 

v. Ripple Effect: Water Minutes:  Radio spots have been on several radio stations (KFGO and 

affiliates) in the Fargo area for over a year.  These are 30 and 60 second spots that talk 

about land and water issues for the general public.  In 2009 we tried radio spots in Winnipeg 

CJOB as a trial. We are working on the 2010 MB arrangements at this time.  

vi. KFGO Talk Radio: News and Views with Joel Heitkamp:  The RRBC Ex. Dir. is now a monthly 

guest on the show to discuss RRB land and water issues.  Future radio time will focus on the 

Long Term Flood Solution (LTFS) Project.  KFGO did a live broadcast live at the 27th Annual 

Summit Conference the morning of Wednesday, January 20th.    

vii. Web Site:  The RRBC web site is: www.redriverbasincommission.org. 

1. Lake Winnipeg Web Portal:  RRBC has had further discussions with Environment Canada 

regarding their new web portal workshop as it relates to Lake Winnipeg. A contract for 

$40,000 to RRBC to enter NRFP information on the portal has been approved.  RRBC 

participated in a web-portal workshop on 17-18 November 2009.  We are beginning the 

data entry using Sharepoint to handle the data and linking it to the web portal.  We 

are working on the video from the field site work water quality improvement projects 

in ND for the web portal.  ND Dept. of Health assisted with site selection and contacts.   

viii. LTFS Project:  LTFS Project Activities are now also on our web site.  RRBC and the City of 

Fargo hosted a tour to the Winnipeg Floodway assisted by the Floodway Authority, who 

provided information, facts, and field site visits to various locations.  

ix. Share Point & Go To Meeting:  RRBC has now established two web tools to assist in 

meetings and communication and reducing travel requirements for basin participants on 

RRBC committees and working groups. We now have a consulting firm working with us to 

make the most use of Sharepoint and to link it to the web portal.  

x. Can River Centre:  We have sent a letter to Centre Venture indicating that due to current 

workload we are unable to focus on this endeavor at this time.  There is still interest by a 

private group in working with RRBC on the Centre with a restaurant.  More information is 

being gathered. 

xi. LWRC:  RRBC has a strong working relationship with the Lake Winnipeg Research 

Consortium. 

xii. Rivers West:  RRBC has a close relationship with Rivers West.  Martens serves as the RRBC 

representative on their Board.  Rivers West has hired a new Executive Director and they 

have moved their offices to another location that is more convenient for them.  We will 

maintain our current working relationship on issues of mutual concern. 

e. GOAL # 5: Flood Forecasting 

i. Precipitation Group:  RRBC has a basin jurisdictional precipitation group that has met and 
discussed precipitation measuring efforts in the basin, reporting processes, and avenues to 
enhance communication all targeted to better flood forecasting.  Staff will be contacting 
this group in 2010 to determine the need and interest in re-convening.  

ii. Flood Stream Gauging:  Houston Engineering, Inc., prepared and submitted this report to 
RRBC and it is ready for distribution to the MN and ND Joint Boards, who helped fund it, and 



to engineers and modelers. RRBC, working with the MN and ND Joint Water Boards, had a 
field crew out during the 2009 spring flood for actual flood flow gauging in areas without 
permanent gauges.  In 2010, USGS had a number of new sites and that along with the type 
of flood there was the need to only take readings with a field crew at two sites. We did this 
with the little remaining funds from 2009. 

f. GOAL # 6: Flood Mitigation 

i. Mainstem Modeling:  The Mike II Model Calibration IV is complete and has been reviewed 

by another engineering firm.  Tributary flow reductions are completed and were reported 

on at the Annual Summit Conference in January.  The LTFS Advisory Committee (AC) and 

Barr Engineering have been working with this information to establish FDR Principles and 

related Goals on flows, levels, etc, for basin consideration.  The RRBC Board on 6 May 2010 

adopted the 20% Flow Reduction goals. 

ii. LTFS Project:  

1. Information Gathering:  Facilitation has occurred with the RRBC Executive Committee, 

LTFS Oversight Committees, and the general public. We finished a round of 21 basin 

wide public meetings and are now in the process of summarizing the information. On 13 

January 2010 the LTFS Technical Committee met with an expanded participant list.  The 

MN and ND Joint Water Board Chairs are now co-chairing the LTFS Project Advisory 

Committee (PAC).  Two Sub-Committees have been established.  One to work on 

Technical issues related to modeling and setting flow and level goals related to FDR 

Principles and the other to work on Policy issues related to impediments related to 

project implementation and timelines. Phone calling to follow up on surveys that were 

mailed earlier is underway.  A draft Legislative Report for MN and ND was completed 15 

January 2010.   

2. Economic Analysis:  Economic analysis for the basin in MN and ND is underway.   

3. Modeling:  Modeling % flow reductions with Mike 11 is complete.  HMS Modeling for 

sub-watersheds is underway by the U.S. COE and once done will be linked to the Mike 

11 Mainstem Model. Modeling in the Fargo-Moorhead area that the Mike 11 can be 

linked to will help address stage elevations issues from the proposed diversion. 

4. Basin Principles and Goals:  13 Basin FDR Principles are under discussion to build 

consensus around them and the supporting flow, level, and other needed specific goals.  

RRBC Board adopted these on 6 May 2010. 

5. F/M Project:  RRBC is working with the Mike 11 Model and will ask help from F/M 

upstream watershed engineers to find storage to help mitigate the F/M Diversion 

Project.  This effort will begin in the Bois de Sioux watershed. The modeling in Bois de 

Sioux is now complete and will be reviewed by the LTFS AC Technical Sub-Committee 

and reported to the Board. 

6. Committees:  

a. LTFS  Advisory Committee (AC):  and its two subcommittees,one on technical issues 

and one on policy,have been meeting.  The contract with Barr Engineering for Phase 

II is underway.  The contract with IWI for DSS is now completed. 

i. LTFS AC Technical Subcommittee:  is working on modeling, flows, and other 

technical issues related to flood damage reduction. 

ii. LTFS AC Policy Subcommittee:  is working on policy issues related to funding, 

permits, and other roadblocks to implementing flood damage reductions 

projects. 



g. GOAL # 7: Flood Response & Recovery 

i. FEMA Region V & VIII:  RRBC has been visiting with the two FEMA regions on Flood 

Mitigation and Modeling potential efforts.  A meeting in Moorhead with the two FEMA 

Regions and the US COE is being planned to further discuss modeling needs. 

h. GOAL # 8: Drainage 

i. The MN and ND joint water boards are meeting regularly 2010 to discuss the need for and 

a strategy for a drainage impact analysis report.  

i. GOAL # 9: Water Quality 

i. Water Quality Jurisdictional Project:  The Water Quality project is nearing completion as 

the Province and States review the draft report.  This effort will also be linked to the IRRB-

AEC work on CN/US border water quality recommendations. 

ii. Red River/Lake Winnipeg Dredging Project:  An RRBC predecessor organization did a 

dredging report.  It was recommended that a more detailed effort be undertaken.  The RM’s 

in that area, the East Manitoba Development Corporation, and the RRBC North Chapter 

have had discussions on this new project and are exploring funding options.  The RRBC 

North Chapter has moved to establish a sub-committee to explore this and revive the 

effort. 

j. GOAL # 10: Water Supply 

i. Concordia College Earth Day:  RRBC attended this event and John Jaschke was the speaker.  

The funds from RRBC will be used later in the year for the speaker at Concordia College who 

had to cancel due to the spring  flood.  The speaker was to be Robert Glennon, who wrote 

“Unquenchable” and “Water Follies:  Groundwater Pumping and the Fate of America’s Fresh 

Waters.”  He presented at Concordia College on 1 October 2009.  

ii. SRGMP:  The RRBC staff has been involved in the Southeast MB Groundwater Project that 

met monthly gathering information and is now beginning the process of developing a plan. 

iii. Water Supply: Jurisdictional Process:  The Water Supply WG will begin working on the 7 

recommendations from this report that the Board approved, once the Conservation/Soft 

Path Report is completed and Board approved.   

iv. Water Supply:  Conservation/Soft Path:  RRBC has the same consultant HDR Engineering 

working on this project as the WS Jurisdictional Process document.  This project is under 

final review by the Water Supply WG and will the Board will be asked for final approval at 

the June Board meeting. 

k. GOAL # 11: Conservation 

i. Conservation Group:  RRBC has a Conservation Working Group that is planning a summer 

meeting/tour if details can be arranged and interest remains strong.  They are exploring a 

tour in MB. 

ii. Basin Conservation Comparisons:  The RRBC WG on Conservation has prepared a Red River 

Basin pamphlet on comparable information on land use classes and years data (which all 

vary) that were gathered from around the RRB by different agencies. 

iii. Ag Task Force:  RRBC has an agricultural task force that gathers annually to discuss the RRBC 

NRFP and agricultural related issues.  This group assisted in the development of the AWEP 

proposal and will be represented on the Basin Working Group if funding is received. 

iv. AWEP:  RRBC has been providing information to USDA for the AWEP proposal on behalf of 

the Red River Basin.  This information covers the 2009 $1.38 million for ring dikes.  The 

proposal that RRBC developed for year two funding will be considered in the next round of 



NRCS funding for AWEP. Second year funding was recently received.  The amount is $2.61 

million and RRBC has been working to help get these funds committed to landowner 

contracts to implement projects.   

l. GOAL # 12: Fish & Wildlife  

i. The RRBC WG on this issue is exploring what to work on at this time. 

m. GOAL # 13: Outdoor Recreation 

i. The RRBC WG on this issue is exploring what to work on at this time. 

 

 



ITEM #

* Required Fields

Comm. Motion Motion

(First) (Second) Yes No Abstain
Swanson Passed
Johnston
Foldesi Failed
Falk

Walker Tabled

Committee Rep

Attached are Jack Swanson's Committee Reports 

*Financial Consideration:

 

*Background (Provide sufficient detail of the subject):

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

*Person Responsible for Request *Department *Board Meeting Date

*Subject Title (As it will appear on the agenda):

Committee Reports

*Legal Consideration:

Teresa Klein, Board Clerk  ATTEST:

Board Action:

Vote Vote Result

*Other Consideration:

 

Coordinator's Office Use (Do Not Write Below)

Date Received:

 
Comments:

*Resolution (Wording should reflect the intent of the Board vote):

Klein, Trish Coordinator Jul 13 2010



JACK SWANSON COMMITTEE REPORTS 

  

JULY 1, 2010 -     NORTHERN COUNTIES LAND USE COORDINATING BOARD  
(CHISHOLM);   sought advice re:  regional rail authority. 
  

JULY 6, 2010 -   COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

  

JULY 7, 2010 -   ROSEAU RIVER WATERSHED BOARD;  discussion related to 
maintenance of the Hay Creek/Norland project. 
  

JULY 7, 2010 -   COMMUNITY JUSTICE COORDINATING COMMITTEE;  
presentation from Susan Mills, the Director of Tri-County Corrections in Crookston 
(which serves Polk, Norman and Red Lake counties). 
  

JULY 8, 2010 -   telephone conversation with attorney Steve Fecker on regional rail 
authority;  he's agreed to a teleconference July 27 (9 a.m.) - (218) 722-6331. 
  

JULY 12, 2010 -  WATER MANAGEMENT SUMMIT  (ST CLOUD) 

 



ITEM #

* Required Fields

Comm. Motion Motion

(First) (Second) Yes No Abstain
Swanson Passed
Johnston
Foldesi Failed
Falk

Walker Tabled

*Other Consideration:

 

Coordinator's Office Use (Do Not Write Below)

Date Received:

 
Comments:

*Resolution (Wording should reflect the intent of the Board vote):

Teresa Klein, Board Clerk  ATTEST:

Board Action:

Vote Vote Result

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

*Person Responsible for Request *Department *Board Meeting Date

*Subject Title (As it will appear on the agenda):

Troy Schroeder, NWRD Transportation Planner and Wade Miller DNR Division of Trails and Waterways

10:30 appt.

Troy Schroeder and Wade Miller will meet with the Board to discuss the roles and 
responsibilites of each partner in the grant-in-aid program.  Attached is the MN Snowmobile 
Trails Assistance Program Maintenance and Grooming manual for your review.  The Board 
will also discuss the acquisition of the rail line between Roseau and Warroad.  

*Financial Consideration:

 

*Background (Provide sufficient detail of the subject):

*Legal Consideration:

Klein, Trish Coordinator Jul 13 2010



Revised 10/19/2009 Page 1 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

MINNESOTA  

SNOWMOBILE TRAILS ASSISTANCE PROGRAM  
 

MAINTENANCE AND GROOMING MANUAL 
 

 
 
 

MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 2 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 
I. INTRODUCTION 

A. Definitions ....................................................................................Page 3 
B. Trails and Waterways Divisional Offices Map .........................Page 4 
C. Program Summary .....................................................................Page 5 
D. Responsibilities and Roles ..........................................................Page 6 

 
II. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

A. Disbursement Schedule for Maintenance .................................Page 8 
B. Penalties........................................................................................Page 9 
C. Accounting and Auditing............................................................Page 10 
D. Program Reviews ........................................................................Page 10 
E. Fiscal Reviews ..............................................................................Page 10 
F. Environmental Review Considerations .....................................Page 10 
G. Required Documentation ...........................................................Page 11 

 
III. APPLICATION PROCESS 

A. Application Process .....................................................................Page 13 
B. Application Instructions .............................................................Page 14 

 
IV. PROGRAM FORMS 

A. Description of Forms ..................................................................Page 15 
Maintenance and Grooming Application...................................Page 16 
Sample Maintenance Agreement Between Sponsor and State..Page 17 
Certification of Trail Completion Form .....................................Page 21 
Certification of Satisfactory Grooming Form............................Page 22 
Certification of Trail Closure/Application Submission Form ..Page 23 
Common Trail Sign Order Forms ..............................................Page 24 
Sample Landowner Permission Form ........................................Page 25 
Sample County/Club Contract ....................................................Page 26 

Sample Trail Maintenance Log ..................................................Page 27 
Elements of a Sponsor Resolution..............................................Page 28 
Operator’s Grooming Log Sheet ................................................Page 29 
Trail Contact Information Form ................................................Page 30 

 
APPENDIX A:  Elements of a Successful Trail ........................................Page 31 
APPENDIX B:  Snowmobile Trail Section of the “Trail Planning,  

  Design, and Development Guidelines” ...........................Page 36 
APPENDIX C:  DNR GIA Trail Proposal Review Process .....................Page 44 
APPENDIX D:  Minnesota Environmental Quality Board  

  Rules Relating to Trails ...................................................Page 45 
APPENDIX E:  Guidelines for “Two-way Nighttime Operation of  

  Snowmobiles in Road Right-of-Ways” ..........................Page 48 
APPENDIX F:  Landowner Liability Statute ...........................................Page 53 



I. INTRODUCTION 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 3 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

A. DEFINITIONS 
 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE - Person responsible for the administration of the contract for either the 
Sponsor or the Department of Natural Resources. 
 

BENCHMARK - Significant event or series of events that have been accomplished and been certified by the 
Sponsor so that the Sponsor can request payment. 
 
GROOMING - Snow grooming is the process of loosening or breaking up heavily compacted or icy snow and 
placing the snow back down in an equally compacted smooth condition. 
 
LOCAL UNIT OF GOVERNMENT (LUG) - The political subdivision that has agreed to work with the 
snowmobile club in the development and maintenance of a trail.  This can be a county, city, township, or 
village. 
 

RESOLUTION - Official record of the LUG where they agree to sponsor a snowmobile or trail club and/or 
trail, certify that the various benchmarks have been met, and administer the grant from the DNR. 
 

SNOWMOBILE CLUB -A formal organization that has contracted with a LUG to maintain and operate a local 
snowmobile trail. 
 

SPONSOR - The local unit of government that has agreed to work with the snowmobile club. 
 

SUFFICIENT RECORDS:  Records that are necessary to verify that the club and sponsor have completed 
certain benchmarks.  These will include at a minimum: 

C Invoices of repairs/significant expenditures; 
C Liability insurance evidence (as required);  
C Log of volunteers and man-hours spent on the various trail activities.  This log should include date, 

number of people working on the trail, number of hours, equipment used, type of work done, and section 
of trail worked on; (an example is included in the Program Forms Sectiion) signed by a club 
representative; 

C Groomer logs listing the date, miles groomed, total grooming hours, project number, trail name and 
segment, trail administrator verification; and, 

 
 

- OR - 

 

C IRS Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax) and all backup schedules and 
documentation;  

C Groomer logs listing the date, miles groomed, total grooming hours, project number, trail name and 
segment, trail administrator verification; and 



I. INTRODUCTION 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 4 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 



I. INTRODUCTION 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 5 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

C. PROGRAM SUMMARY 
 

PROGRAM BACKGROUND 

In 1973 the Minnesota Legislature delegated the responsibility of administering a cost-sharing program for the 
development and maintenance of snowmobile trails to the Department of Natural Resources (DNR).  The goal 
of this program was the creation and maintenance of locally initiated trails that were financially assisted by the 
state.  This program was named the "Minnesota Trails Assistance Program," and is popularly known as the 
grant-in-aid program or simply the GIA program.  The DNR has been delegated the responsibility of 
administering the funds appropriated by the legislature for the GIA program. The Legislature has subsequently 
provided programs to cover cross-country skiing, off-highway motorcycles, off-road vehicles, and all-terrain 
vehicles. 

The DNR central office in Saint Paul sets program policy and guidelines, budgets for program funding and 
provides for auditing of grants. Department of Natural Resources Regional Trails and Waterways Managers and 
Area Trails and Waterways Supervisors are responsible for reviewing and processing necessary program forms, 
providing technical assistance when requested, monitoring trails for actual performance of disbursed activities, 
and conducting informational meetings with local organizations. The Area Trails and Waterways Supervisors 
are the main contact for local organizations and grant sponsors. 

A NEW APPROACH TO PROVIDING FUNDING FOR GRANT-IN-AID TRAILS 

This approach is based upon payment for achieving agreed upon benchmarks including having the trails 
prepared and ready to be opened, adequate grooming, post-season closure, and submission of appropriate 
paperwork.  The new system’s reliance on monitoring the completion of these benchmarks eliminates the need 
for many of the accounting records to be sent to the sponsor or the DNR as is presently associated with the 
program.  However, most clubs still need to maintain many of these records to keep their tax-exempt status with 
the IRS.  



I. INTRODUCTION 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 6 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

D. RESPONSIBILITIES AND ROLES 
 

The following are responsibilities and roles of each partner in the Grant-in-Aid Program. 
 

 

Snowmobile Clubs: 

� Secure a local unit of government as a sponsor. 
� Enter into an agreement with the sponsor to physically perform the work necessary in maintaining the 

local trail system. 
� Complete tasks in a timely way and submit documentation to the sponsor as required for them to certify 

completion of significant benchmarks.   
� Maintain sufficient records as defined under the Definition of Terms within this instruction Manual to 

satisfy the auditing needs of the trail sponsor and DNR.  
� Adhere to the trail user maps and public information, trail design and construction, trail grooming, and 

trail signing guidelines contained in this instruction manual. 
� Attend at a minimum one training session conducted by DNR and other related training sessions as 

requested by the Department. 
� The Department of Natural Resources (with the support of the Minnesota United Snowmobile 

Association) very strongly recommends that clubs partially shield their volunteers from the 
consequences of injury by securing appropriate insurance coverage.  Obtain sufficient insurance if 
necessary and required by the sponsor to protect the interests of the club as well as the local unit of 
government sponsor. 

� Obtain sufficient permission from each landowner on which the snowmobile trail is located. For public 
land, contact the public agency that administers the land in order to get a permit for the section of 
snowmobile trail on the public property. 

� Provide a backup plan for grooming the trails if the Club’s groomer breaks down for more than one day. 
� Secure the proper federal tax status.   As of the 2000-2001 season it is required that all clubs that receive 

grant-in-aid funds be registered with the State as a nonprofit corporation.  This is to encourage good 
management practices, formalize property liquidation procedures in the event a club decides to close, 
and take advantage of the tax benefits afforded nonprofit corporations. 

 
 

Local Unit of Government/Sponsor:  
� Pass a resolution to serve as the sponsor and submit that to the DNR along with the application form.   
� Be responsible for certifying to the DNR completion of the four benchmarks necessary to initiate 

payments and provide a quality snowmobile experience.   
� Work with DNR to verify that the local club is adhering to the various guidelines contained in this 

instruction manual. 
� Meet with DNR once annually, either an in-person meeting or a voice conference call. 
� The DNR strongly urges the sponsors to similarly enter into contracts with their snowmobile clubs. 

These contracts will provide your unit of government with safeguards in the event that monies will have 
to be reclaimed by the State. 

� Assure that the trails are ready and open for use, including verifying that the Club has obtained 
permission to occupy the property where the trail is located. 

 

 



I. INTRODUCTION 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 7 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 

 

State/Department of Natural Resources: 
� Initiate application process and respond to submitted applications 
� Provide the Maintenance Agreement for the sponsoring local unit of government.  
� Disburse funds for maintenance upon receipt of appropriate certifications from the sponsor. 
� Include the trail in a statewide map of snowmobile opportunities using the alignments provided by the 

local club when new snowmobile maps are printed. 
� Conduct random program reviews to evaluate performance in coordination with sponsors and clubs (see 

page 9) 
� Conduct fiscal reviews in coordination with Sponsor and Club in order to evaluate appropriate 

accounting procedures and compile needed information for future statewide or system-wide audits (see 
page 9) 

� Make payments to the School Trust Fund for Grant-in-Aid trails on School Trust Fund Land. 
� Provide signs for Grant-in-Aid trails, pending availability. 



II. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 8 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

A. DISBURSEMENT SCHEDULE FOR MAINTENANCE 
 

Annual disbursement by DNR will be based upon the completion of the four benchmarks listed below. Non-

disbursed funds will be canceled annually, which means there will be no “carry-over” of funds from year to year. 

 

1. Trail Completion Benchmark  

40% of Total Grant Amount 

Disbursement of these funds is contingent on the sponsor providing a high quality map that shows the final alignment of 
the trail and a Trail Completion Certification Form (see Page 21) that the trail is open and available for use.    

� The certification must be received no later than December 15th of that year. 

� This includes having the trail brushed, bridges in repair, signs installed, gates were capable of being open (snow 
permitting), and any other additional work needed.   

� Also the Sponsor ensures that interest in lands to operate a snowmobile trail have been acquired through fee 
ownership, easement, lease, permit, or other conveyances of interest throughout the entire Trail. 

� This benchmark may be turned in and processed prior to December 1st if all of the above have been completed and 
certified. 

 

2. Grooming Certification Benchmark, Opening – January 31
st
  

25% of Total Grant Amount 

A portion of the grooming monies will be disbursed in February to the Sponsor by the DNR based upon the Certification 
of Satisfactory Grooming Form (see Page 22) received from the Sponsor that the trails have been properly groomed from 
opening day through January 31.   

� The certification must be received no later than March 1st of that year. 

� The Sponsor in coordination with the Club must maintain sufficient records to document the activity. 

 

3. Grooming Certification Benchmark, February 1  – Closing 

25% of Total Grant Amount 

The second disbursement of the grooming monies will be made to the Sponsor by the DNR based upon the Certification 
of Satisfactory Grooming Form (see Page 22) received from the Sponsor and verification that the trails were groomed to 
the satisfaction of the Sponsor from February 1st through the end of the season.   

� The certification must be received no later than April 15th of that year.  

� The Sponsor in coordination with the Club must maintain sufficient records to document the activity. 

 

4. Trail Closure/Application Submission Benchmark 

10% of Total Grant Amount 

The final payment will be based upon the Trail Closure/Application Submission Certification form received from the 
Sponsor. 

� The certification must be received no later than May 15th. 

� Trails should be closed based on activities including closing gates, remove refuse, etc. 

� A completed application for the next year must accompany the certification (see Page 23). 

� Must provide evidence that Sponsor and Club attended spring training session conducted by DNR. 

� A map indicating the “anticipated” alignment of the trail must also be submitted. 

� A back-up grooming plan must also be provided. 

� This benchmark may be turned in and processed prior to May 15th if all of the above have been completed and 
certified. 



II. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 9 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

B. PENALTIES 
 
The DNR expects the clubs and the local units of government to adhere to trail guidelines contained within this 
Manual.  Any significant deviations from these guidelines will require written permission from DNR.  Penalties 
will be assessed for not having the trail open and ready, or for not grooming the trails for the entire season per 
the Trail Grooming Guidelines contained within this Manual.  Additionally, snowmobile clubs that falsely 
certify to the county that trails were open and ready or that trails were properly groomed will be dropped from 
the trail assistance program.  None of these penalties will preclude the DNR from undertaking any legal actions 
that may be warranted. 
 

If needed, an appeal process will be set up to give the Sponsor and related Club an appropriate opportunity for 
review and appeal of these penalties.  The DNR will collaborate with the Sponsors, Clubs and the Minnesota 
United Snowmobile Association (MNUSA) on how the appeal process will work.   

 

Where applicable, the DNR will determine the appropriate breakdown of funds assigned to each club covered 
by the Sponsor.  In the event of penalties, the DNR may withhold the appropriate amount from the entire grant 
or withhold payments to reflect only those clubs that have failed to perform. 

 

The penalty schedule is as follows: 

 

1. If it is determined that the Trail Completion Certification benchmark in this Plan has not been 
satisfactorily completed but was certified as having been completed by the Sponsor, the Sponsor may be 
assessed a penalty of up to 40% of the Total Annual Grant Amount.   

 

2. If it is determined that the Grooming Certification benchmark for the period of opening day through 

January 31 in this Plan has not been satisfactorily completed but was certified as having been completed by 
the Sponsor, the Sponsor may be assessed a penalty of up to 25% of the Total Annual Grant Amount.   

 

3. If it is determined that the Grooming Certification benchmark for the period of February 1 through the 

end of the season in this Plan has not been satisfactorily completed but was certified as having been 
completed by the Sponsor, the Sponsor may be assessed a penalty of up to 25% of the Total Annual Grant 
Amount.  

 

4. If it is determined that the Trail Closure/Application Submission Certification benchmark in this Plan has 
not been satisfactorily completed but was certified as having been completed by the Sponsor, the Sponsor 
may be assessed a penalty of up to 5% of the total annual Grant Amount if appropriate paperwork is not 
submitted by June 15th and a penalty of up to 10% if not provided by July 1st. 

 

In addition to the above penalties, the State reserves the right to reduce payment in the following year's 
agreement or to exclude the Sponsor from participation in the Trails Assistance Program for up to 3 years. 



II. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 10 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

C. ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT   
The Sponsor shall maintain books, records, documents, and other evidence relevant to this grant and in such 
detail that will accurately document all project costs for which payment have been received.  The Sponsor shall 
use generally accepted accounting principles and these records shall be retained for six years after this grant 
terminates.  The State, its representative or the legislative auditor shall have the right to examine this evidence 
and the Sponsor shall make them available at the office at all reasonable times during the record retention 
period.  Records shall be sufficient, as defined in the Manual to reflect significant costs incurred and volunteer 
donation of time, equipment, and/or materials in performance of this grant. 

 

D. PROGRAM REVIEWS 
The DNR, Trails and Waterways Area Supervisors will conduct reviews on an annual basis of how Sponsors 
and the related clubs are performing within the context of the program.  The intent is to increase the interaction 
between the Trails and Waterways field staff and the Sponsors and related Clubs.  These reviews will be 
random in nature and will be done at the grant level.  Not every grant will be reviewed every year.  This review 
will include at a minimum the following areas: 

� Routine trail monitoring of grooming and maintenance activities 

� Review of ongoing trail issues and environmental concerns 

� Capital improvement grant reviews 

� Complaint management and follow up 

 

E. FISCAL REVIEWS 
The DNR, Trails and Waterways Grant Coordinator will conduct reviews on an annual basis of how Sponsors 
and the related clubs are performing financially within the context of the program.  The intent is to evaluate how 
effectively the funds are being distributed by DNR and utilized by the Sponsors and the related clubs.  These 
reviews will be random in nature and will be done at the grant level.  Not every grant will be reviewed every 
year.  It is anticipated that eight reviews will be conducted every year.  This review will include at a minimum 
the following areas: 

� Contract administration 

� Record keeping 

� Expenditures 

 

F. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW CONSIDERATIONS 
Many new development projects and some trail relocation initiatives will require some level of environmental 
review.  Sponsors and related clubs should work with Trails and Waterways Area Supervisors on determining 
which requirements they will need to address as they move forward with their projects.  Attached as Appendix 
D are the rules adopted by the Environmental Quality Board relating to recreational trail development.  These 
rules outline the requirements and exemptions relating to whether or not an environmental review may or may 
not be needed.  Also attached as Appendix C, is the process and general timeline in which the DNR conducts 
these environmental reviews. 
 



II. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 11 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

G. REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION 
 
The following is a required list of documents that the snowmobile clubs or sponsors need to maintain in 
accordance with program requirements. Only those documents marked with (*) are required to be turned in to 
the DNR, but the rest must be kept on file. 
 
Landowner Permission Documentation 

All snowmobile trails must have permission to be located on public or private property. It is the responsibility 
of the snowmobile club or sponsor to keep these records. 
 
Proof of Snowmobile Club Non-Profit Status 

It is required that all snowmobile clubs that receive GIA funds must be registered with the Minnesota Secretary 
of State as a nonprofit corporation.  
 
Invoices of Repair Expenditures Associated with Each Benchmark 

Make sure to keep all invoices and proof of payment for expenses related to maintaining the GIA trail. These 
serve as expense documentation of meeting benchmark requirements. 
 
Volunteer Work Logs 

It is required that volunteer trail work hours be documented (this does not include grooming). The log should 
include date, number of people working on the trail, number of hours, equipment used, type of work done, and 
section of trail worked on. A work log form can be found on the Snowmobile GIA web page. 
 
Grooming Logs* 

It is required that all grooming trips on GIA trails be documented. These logs should include date, miles 
groomed, total grooming hours, trail name, and segment. A grooming log form can be found on the 
Snowmobile GIA web page. Previous years’ grooming logs are turned into the DNR with spring applications. 
 
Backup Grooming Plan* 

The snowmobile club or sponsor must have a backup plan for grooming the trails if a groomer breaks down for 
more than one day. Backup grooming plans are turned into the DNR with spring applications. 
 
Map of Current Trail Alignments (Validation Map)* 

Clubs and sponsors are required to provide updates to trail maps to the DNR with spring applications, but all 
clubs and sponsors should have up-to-date trail alignment information. 
 
Permits and Environmental Approval Documents 

Clubs and sponsors must obtain and keep on file all required permits and environmental approval documents. 
Not Required but Strongly Encouraged 
 
Liability Insurance Certificate 

It is strongly encouraged that clubs partially shield their volunteers from the consequences of injury by securing 
appropriate insurance coverage. The DNR does not require this, but a sponsor may.  
 



II. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 12 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

Contract between the Sponsor and Club 

It is strongly encouraged that the sponsors enter into contracts with their snowmobile clubs. These contracts 
help define roles and provide additional safeguards. 
 
Application with Mandatory Attachments and Benchmark Forms 

It is strongly encouraged that both the sponsors and associated clubs maintain a copy of the annual program 
application with attachments and benchmark reimbursement forms for reference and annual documentation. 
 
 
ADDITIONAL RESOURCES 

 
The following are a list of resources to assist in the documentation requirements and general maintenance and 
grooming of snowmobile trails. 
 
Snowmobile GIA Web Page www.dnr.state.mn.us/grants/recreation/gia_snowmobile.html  
The Snowmobile GIA web page has all program forms as well as additional program information. 
 
Minnesota Secretary of State www.sos.state.mn.us or 1-877-551-6767 
Click on “Business Center” to find information on how to register as a non-profit corporation. All GIA clubs are 
required to be registered as a non-profit with the State of Minnesota. The Minnesota Secretary of State’s (SOS) 
office administers non-profit corporation registration and questions about this process should be directed to the 
SOS. 
 
International Association of Snowmobile Administrators (IASA) www.snowiasa.org  
IASA has created several valuable guidelines and resources for snowmobile trail administration, including a 
signing guide, grooming guide, as well as other important resources of managing a snowmobile trail. Click on 
“Guidelines and Resources” to find this information.   
 
Minnesota United Snowmobilers Association (MnUSA) www.mnsnowmobiler.org  
MnUSA is a source for snowmobiling information and club support in Minnesota.  
 
Trail Guidelines Books www.minnesotasbookstore.com or 1-800-657-3757 
This technical manual covers all you need to know about designing and building trails. This manual is published 
by the MN DNR and can be purchased for $19.95 through the Minnesota Bookstore. 
 



IV. PROGRAM FORMS 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 13 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

A. APPLICATION PROCESS 
 
1. Sponsors/Clubs meet with DNR Trails and Waterways Area Supervisors in Spring Meetings 
 
2. Sponsors/Clubs are provided verification maps to determine upcoming year’s alignment 

 
3. Area Supervisors provide Central Office with the maps 

 
4. Club submits application 

 
5. Trails and Waterways Area Supervisors review applications for completeness 

 
6. Trails and Waterways determines the appropriate allocation rate for the upcoming fiscal year 

 
7. Trails and Waterways Area/Region submits funding request to Central Office for total amount needed 

for all grants 
 

8. Trails and Waterways Central Office notifies Area/Region when funding is available for new grants 
 

9. Trails and Waterways Area Supervisor requests the Central Office business office to encumber funds 
 

10. Trails and Waterways Central Office business office encumbers funds 
 

11. Trails and Waterways Area Supervisor and Regional Manager sign original applications 
 

12. Trails and Waterways Area Supervisor make copies of one original signed grant agreement (four total 
agreements needed) 

 
13. Trails and Waterways Area Supervisor sends grant agreement to sponsor for signature 

 
14. Sponsor signs and returns all four grant agreements to Trails and Waterways Area Supervisor 

 
15. All supporting documentation sent to Trails and Waterways Central Office for final execution of grants 



IV. PROGRAM FORMS 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 14 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

B. APPLICATION INSTRUCTIONS 
 

The following procedures must be adhered to if you are applying for Minnesota Snowmobile Trails 

Assistance Program Maintenance and Grooming funding on a trail system that is presently enrolled 

within the grant-in-aid trail system. 

 

The following projects are considered trail maintenance: 

� Relocating a relatively short section of trail currently in the GIA Program (see EQB Rules in 
the Program Manual, Appendix D);  

� Minor trail improvements (e.g., installation of railings, signing, and surface preparation). 
� Maintaining a trail currently in the GIA Program 
� Winter grooming of a trail system currently in the GIA Program. 

 

NOTE: UNDER NO CONDITION CAN CONSTRUCTION TAKE PLACE ON ANY PARCEL 

OF LAND, PRIVATE OR PUBLIC, UNLESS A SIGNED PERMIT HAS BEEN 

SECURED IN THE NAME OF THE SPONSOR. 

 

The Minnesota Trails Assistance Application projects must comply with the following procedures: 

 

1. Trail user organizations/clubs must submit application forms to the sponsor. 

a. One (1) copy with original signatures. 

b. One (1) copy trail validation map of the existing trail system (provided by DNR). The 
map must identify the following: 

• Where bridges, rest areas and parking lots are located 

• Connection or relationships to other trails, if any 

• Minor relocation areas showing old and new alignments 
c. One (1) copy of all grooming logs for these trails from the previous year and a back-up 

grooming plan. 
 

2. The sponsor will submit the above items, along with a supporting resolution, to the DNR 

Area Trails and Waterways Supervisor for review.   

 

APPLICATION FORMS MUST BE RECEIVED BY MAY 15. 

 

3. Upon approval of the application, the Area Trails and Waterways Supervisor will submit a 

contract agreement to the sponsor. The sponsor will then process three (3) copies of the 

contract agreement with original signatures on each copy and return all copies to the Area 

Trails and Waterways Supervisor. 

 

4. The DNR will notify the sponsor, in writing that the agreement has been executed. 



IV. PROGRAM FORMS 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 15 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

A. DESCRIPTION OF FORMS 
 

The following forms have been included to identify the basic paperwork necessary for the Trails Assistance 
Program. See the DNR’s website at www.dnr.state.mn.us/grants/recreation/gia_snowmobile.html. 

 
� Maintenance and Grooming Application: This document is the instrument for applying for 

maintenance funds on previously established trails. 

 

� Sample Maintenance Agreement Between Sponsor and State/DNR: This form is the legal document 
between the State and sponsor. This document sets aside funding and identified conditions agreed to by 
both parties. Only after notification in writing by the DNR can the Sponsor be guaranteed of funding for 
the maintenance. 

 

� Certification of Trail Completion Form:  This form is submitted to the DNR by the sponsor and 
certifies that the trail is ready for snowmobiling. 

 

� Certification of Satisfactory Grooming Form:  This form certifies that the entire trail system covered 
by the agreement has received satisfactory grooming. 

 

� Certification of Trail Closure/Application Submission Form:  This form certifies that the entire trail 
system covered by the agreement has received satisfactory grooming. 

 
� Common Trail Sign Order Forms: This form is designed to assist grant organizations in requesting 

signs from the DNR. 
 

� Sample Landowner Permission Form: This form is designed to help clubs obtain private landowner 
permission for trails. 

 

� Sample County/Club Contract: This form is designated to help establish contracts between sponsors 
and clubs. 

 

� Sample Trail Maintenance Log: This is an example of how clubs should document trail maintenance. 

 

� Elements of a Sponsor Resolution: This is an explanation of the information a correct sponsor 
resolution should contain. 

 
� Operator’s Grooming Log Sheet: This is an example of how clubs should document grooming trips. 

 
� Trail Contact Information Form: This form provides contact information for DNR map publications 

and website. 
 



IV. PROGRAM FORMS 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 16 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 



IV. PROGRAM FORMS 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 17 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 



IV. PROGRAM FORMS 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 18 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 



IV. PROGRAM FORMS 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 19 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 



IV. PROGRAM FORMS 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 20 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 



IV. PROGRAM FORMS 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 21 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 



IV. PROGRAM FORMS 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 22 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 



IV. PROGRAM FORMS 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 23 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 



IV. PROGRAM FORMS 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 24 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

Common Trail Sign Order Forms 
Grant organizations are responsible for obtaining all signs for the trails they operate. A limited number of signs are available from the DNR. All 
others must be obtained from other sources. The following forms are designed to assist grant organizations in requesting signs from the DNR. 
DATE:                                                                           
CLUB:                                                                             
CONTACT:                                                                           PHONE:                                              

DESCRIPTION SIGN # ORDERED 

Tan Blank 8"x8"  NRM 8.2.25A  

Tan Blank 12"x12" NRM 8.2.25B  

Tan Blank 12"x18" NRM 8.2.25C  

Stop NRM 8.4.1  

Stop Ahead NRM 8.4.2  

Yield NRM 8.4.3  

Do Not Enter NRM 8.4.4  

Decal: One Way (for “Do Not Enter” sign) NRM 8.4.4B  

Decal: Trail Closed (for “Do Not Enter” sign) NRM 8.4.4D  

Decal: Bridge Out (for “Do Not Enter” sign) NRM 8.4.4E  

Caution NRM 8.4.5  

Stay On Trail NRM 8.2.20  

Caution Trucks Hauling NRM 8.4.9  

Grant-In-Aid-Trail NRM 8.5.7  

Snowmobile Trail Closed NRM 8.6.9  

No Motorized Vehicles Permitted NRM 8.4.14  

Decal: Beyond This Point (for NRM 8.4.14) NRM 8.4.14C  

Decal: Except Snowmobile (for NRM 8.4.14) NRM 8.4.14F  

Decal: Except ATVs & Snowmobiles (for NRM 8.4.14) NRM 8.4.14G  

Motorized Symbol - Snowmobile 12"x12" NRM 8.4.22A  

Motorized Symbol - NO/ Snowmobile 12"x12"  NRM 8.4.22B  

Nonmotorized Symbol - XC Skiing 12"x12" Blue NRM 8.4.24N  

Nonmotorized Symbol - XC Skiing 3"x3" Decal Blue NRM 8.4.24N  

Reassurance Blazer 5"x7" (specify orange or blue)  NRM 8.4.7A  

+ Intersection (specify snowmobile-orange or ski-yellow) NRM 8.4.8A  

T Junction (specify snowmobile-orange or ski-yellow) NRM 8.4.8B  

Directional Arrow (specify snowmobile-orange or ski-yellow) NRM 8.4.8C  

Y Junction - Right (specify snowmobile-orange or ski-yellow) NRM 8.4.8D  

Y Junction - Left (specify snowmobile-orange or ski-yellow)  NRM 8.4.8E  

Curve - Right (specify snowmobile-orange or ski-yellow) NRM 8.4.8F  

Curve - Left (specify snowmobile-orange or ski-yellow)  NRM 8.4.8G  

Winding Trail (specify snowmobile-orange or ski-yellow) NRM 8.4.8H  

Ski Pass required Here 8"x8" NRM 8.5.24   

 
NOTE: These signs are available on a limited basis through DNR Area Offices.  Quantities are Limited.  If signs are not available, the Trail Administrator is 
responsible for obtaining signs from other sources. 



IV. PROGRAM FORMS 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 25 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

Sample Landowner Permission Form 

 

LANDOWNER PERMISSION FORM 

 

 THIS PERMIT is granted on ______________________________, by _________________________ 
the Landowner(s) to_______________________________ the Sponsor to establish and/or maintain the 
_________________________________ Snowmobile Trail. 

 

That ______________________________________, the (record owners, contract for deed purchasers, lessees) 
in consideration of   ______________________________________________________, grants this permit over 
and upon the following described premises situated in the County of __________________, State of Minnesota, 
to wit:        (complete land description) 

 

 

 

SUBJECT TO: 

 

1. This permit shall be continuous and will terminate upon sale of the land, or upon notification in writing 
to the Sponsor six (6) months prior to termination by the Landowner(s). 

 

2. The right-of-way shall be open to the general public for snowmobile use. 

 

3. The Sponsor shall at all times have the right to enter upon said right-of-way for any purpose necessary to 
the performance of lawful powers and duties. 

 

4.  The Landowner(s) shall have the right to close said right-of-way during any emergency, with the 
approval of the Sponsor. 

 

5.  The permit is for a_______foot width over the route to be used. 

 

 

DATE:  __________________________        _________________________________________________ 
                                                      (Landowner Signature) 

 

       ______________________________  
                        (Address and Phone Number)  

______________________________  
                     (Club Representative) 

 

NOTE: All Trail Permits are to be made out to the Sponsor not the club. Permits can be made out to club only 
if the Sponsor has specifically given written permission and authority to the club, and the club has been 
incorporated. 



IV. PROGRAM FORMS 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 26 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

Sample COUNTY/ CLUB CONTRACT 

This agreement made this _____ day of _____________, 20____, between _________________________________ hereinafter 
referred to as the local unit of government and ____________________________________ hereinafter referred to as the club. 

WITNESSED: 

Whereas the local unit of government desires to establish a public trail in furtherance of its public recreation program, and 

Whereas the club agrees to help and assist the local unit of government to acquire, construct and maintain said trail, and is 
registered as a nonprofit corporation, and  

Whereas the State of Minnesota offers financial and technical assistance to the local unit of government for the construction of 
an approve trail, and whereas the trail in connection with this agreement shall hereinafter be called ____________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________________, 

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES THERETO: 

The local unit of government shall apply to the State of Minnesota - Department of Natural Resources - for financial and 
technical assistance in accordance with the laws, rules, and regulations governing said assistance. 

If said assistance is granted, the local unit of government shall contract with the club for the acquisition of the necessary 
interests in land and the subsequent construction and maintenance of the trail.   

The contract shall specifically provide that any “work” in connection with the trail shall be in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the agreement between the state and the local unit of government and such terms and conditions be incorporated 
in said contract by reference. 

Further the contract shall provide that the club will certify to the local unit of government upon completion of significant 
benchmarks of “work” on the trail.  The local unit of government agrees to pay the club the appropriate percentage of the total 
grant amount for their “work” completed by the club on their portion of the trail system as agreed to/with the other clubs in the 
trail system; the club will “absorb” the remainder.  In the event that a performance penalty is assessed on the sponsor, by the 
state, such penalty will be passed through to the appropriate club and be their obligation until satisfied. 

The contract shall specifically provide that the club will be operating as an independent contractor and that the local unit of 
government and the State of Minnesota shall not be responsible for workman’s compensation of other employee benefits. 

Not Withstanding the financial assistance provided in the state contract, the local unit of government shall not be liable for such 
costs as are incurred by the club because state funds are depleted. 

Board Chairman/Mayor__________________________________ 

Auditor/Clerk _________________________________________ 

Club President _________________________________________ 

Club Secretary _________________________________________ 

 

 



IV. PROGRAM FORMS 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 27 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

Sample Trail Maintenance Log 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

September 2002 
 

  1 2 3 4 5 PB/ASPEN- 

Brush Trail/ 
Minor Repair      8 
People/ 9 hrs      7 
ATV’s                6 
Chainsaws       1 
D6 Dozer         5 
PU/40 mi 

6     Soo Line 
Brush Trail 

5 People/8 hrs  

3 ATV’s               
4 Brushers            
4 Chainsaws         
3 PU/50 mi 

7 8 9 10 11 12 

 

 

 

 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

 

 

 

 

20 Pipeline - 
Repair Bridge/ 
Brush Trail       10 
People/9 hrs 10 
ATV’s           5 
Chainsaws       7 
PU/ 60 mi 
Lumber 

21 22 23 24 25 26 Aspen - 
Signing               4 
People/6 hrs    4 
ATV’s             4 
PU/70 mi 

 

 

27 Aspen - Maps/ 
Landowner Prmts 
10 People/5 hrs 
10 PU/250 mi 

28 29 30  

Form Completed by: ____________________________ 

Date:   

Please Note: This form must be signed by a club 

official (see Page 2). 

 



IV. PROGRAM FORMS 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 28 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 

Elements of a Sponsor Resolution 

 
 
A sponsor/local unit of government resolution should include the following information: 
 
 

� A statement that the local unit of government will act as legal sponsor for an application for the DNR 
Snowmobile Trails Assistance Program  

 
� A statement that the local unit of government may enter into agreement with the State of Minnesota for 

the specific grant program mentioned above 
 

� A statement that the local unit of government will comply with all applicable laws and regulations as 
stated in the agreement 

 
� A statement recognizing an individual (in many cases a local government auditor) who will act as a 

fiscal agent on behalf of the local unit of government 
 

� Date the resolution is adopted 
 

� If the local unit of government wishes to pass a resolution that is effective beyond one year, the 
resolution must include a clause clearly outlining these details. If the sponsor does not do this, a new 
resolution will be needed annually with spring applications. 



IV. PROGRAM FORMS 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 29 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 
 



IV. PROGRAM FORMS 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 30 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 
 



APPENDIX A 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 31 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

ELEMENTS OF A SUCCESSFUL TRAIL 

 
Trail User Maps and Public Information Guidelines 

 
Accurate maps of the trail system should be prepared for free distribution to users. They should be available at 
the trailhead, DNR offices, and other locations convenient to the public and at a minimum should include the 
following data: 

1. Trail Name or Names. 
2. Trail Location -- Give directions on how to get to the trail system parking lot from the nearest town and 

major highway. A small state map showing the general location within the state could also be useful. 
3. Trail Length -- Show the number of miles/km for each segment or loop. 
4. Trail Use -- Identify loops or segments designated for snowmobiling use, as well as trails closed to 

snowmobiling if the potential for conflict with other users exist, e.g., cross-country skiing. 
5. Trail Connections -- Identify other trails the trail connects to such as: State Parks and State Forests, State 

Trails, or other Grants-In-Aid Trails. 
6. Trail Information -- Give name, address and phone number of an individual who may be contacted for 

information, contact the local chamber of commerce to identify them as the local contact. The phone 
number of the local conservation officer may also be helpful. 

7. Bridges -- Show all bridge crossings. 
8. Roads -- Identify maintained state forest roads and portions used as trails; also identify roads not 

maintained, but suitable for snowmobiling. 
9. Mark on map and/or list locations where the following services would be available: 

Gas Repair services 
Food Medical facilities 
Lodging Law enforcement officers 
Nearest DNR office 911 or Zenith 

Other helpful information 
10. Develop a grid system for safety purposes or locating facilities. 
11. Basic Safety Tips -- Speed limit, driving on lakes/thin ice, frostbite, trail signs, etc. Statements 

concerning speed and alcohol should be included on the map. 
12. It is helpful to put a date somewhere (bottom right-hand corner for consistency) on the map so the most 

current maps are in circulation. 
13. Identify all roads on map, and have corresponding signs posted on trails to help trail users know where 

they are at all times. 
14. Clearly identify all state asphalt paved bike trails where metal studs are prohibited. 

 
County base maps are available from the DNR that show snowmobile trail alignments.  These base maps are 
available for most counties from the Trails and Waterways Unit. Check with the Area Trails and Waterways 
Supervisor for your county. 
 
Trail Design and Construction Guidelines 
 
Minimum riding surface for one-way trail should be eight (8) feet or a reasonable width based on the conditions. 
Minimum riding surface for two-way trail should be ten (10) feet or a reasonable width based on the conditions.  
An additional two (2) feet should be cleared outside the trail surface. Minimum turning radius is 100 feet, unless 
marked. 
Branches and obstacles above the trail should be cleared to a height of ten (10) feet. 



APPENDIX A 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 32 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

Reflective signs should be placed on the right side of the trail on posts at reasonable intervals (see Appendix B - 
Snowmobile Trail Signage Manual).  
 
Trail Grooming Guidelines 

 

General Information 

One of the most important winter trail function is grooming. Providing a good smooth trail will depend on 
ground surfaces, which are free of stumps, rocks, roots or other debris. Because the snow surface will reflect the 
ground surface conditions, a well groomed, smooth trail depends upon several things: 1) a relatively smooth and 
even ground surface, 2) a good snow base, and 3) good grooming. Snow compaction compresses loose, fluffy 
snow so that a firm base is provided. Snow grooming is the process of loosening or breaking up heavily 
compacted or icy snow and placing the snow back down in equally compacted, smooth condition. 
 
Trail Grooming Guidelines 
Under optimum conditions, grooming should begin when snow depth has reached approximately twelve (12) 
inches. Begin by compacting the snow with a large roller or drag with a packer pan. If this option is not 
available, packing can be accomplished with just the groomer, using the tracks to compact the loose, fluffy snow. 
If the snow is too deep, a snowmobile could be used. A very important point is that the snow base should be built 
from the bottom, up. Snow compacting should be considered after any substantial snowfall. The following are 
items that you should consider. 

• Groom shortly after a snowfall. 

• Grooming, when possible, should be done when traffic is light such as at night or on weekdays. 

• Ideal grooming temperatures usually lie between minus five degrees Fahrenheit (-5°F) and fifteen 
degrees Fahrenheit (15°F). 

• The kind of snow is a major factor in determining at what temperature the trail should be groomed. Dry 
snow usually grooms best during the day when the temperatures are warmer. Wet snow grooms best at 
night when temperatures are usually cooler. 

• Cut all moguls off at or near the bottom of the dips and place the snow into a uniform layer. Moguls 
should not be cut halfway down or an uneven base density will result, and the moguls will reappear. 

• In limited snow conditions, set the drag so that snow can be pulled from the edges toward the center of 
the trail. 

A good general rule for grooming speed is four (4) to ten (10) miles per hour. It should be noted that each 
groomer/drag combination is different, but grooming too slow or too fast will result in poor trail conditions 
(wash boarding, uneven snow compaction, etc.). 



APPENDIX A 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 33 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

Signing Suggestions 

 
In general, signing on trails should be designed to provide direction, information, and safety for trail users.  
Major signing areas are at the trailhead, trail junctions, and in areas where safety of the user is involved.  
Trailhead and trail junction signs will provide maps showing route designation, distance, traffic flow direction, 
and location of support facilities.  Safety signs will caution users of steep slopes, bridges, or highway crossings, 
and other hazardous trail conditions. 
 
Signs on all trails should be kept at a minimum and be well placed. 
 
Signs placed out on the trail should include reassuring blazers, caution signs, do not enter signs, stop signs, etc. 
 
Placement of most signs should be on the right-hand side of the trail just off the main treadway but within 
clearing limits.  Signs should be attached to posts placed two (2) to three (3) feet off the treadway and three (3) 
to four (4) feet above expected snow depth.  Attach them securely with lag screws or carriage bolts. Wood or 
metal posts may be used depending on location and availability. 

The directional sign used on the trail should be trail junction blazers, directional blazers and reassuring blazers.  
Signs should be placed in open areas or in other areas where a trail user might become confused.  If uncertain 

about the effectiveness of signing, invite a non-local trail user to identify where deficiencies may exist. 

 
Suggested Signing Program: 

1. Trailhead 

The following signs should be located near the parking lot at the start of the trail. 

A. Major Information Board Map of trails 

Registration Distance of various routes 

Interpretive information Rules and regulations 

Trail conditions Trail uses permitted and prohibited 

Emergency telephone numbers 

Address of person in charge of trail operation and maintenance (unit manager) 

Where to go and who to see in case of emergency 

B. You Are Here -- Should be located at the trailhead and at intersections with other trails. 

i. if necessary, direction of trail (one-way, two-way) 

ii. trail distances (miles or kilometers)  

iii. location of facilities 

iv. you are here location marker 



APPENDIX A 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 34 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 

2. Information 

A. Use Designation -- Should be located at all intersections where incompatible users may enter the trail. 

B. Interpretive -- Located at points of interest along trail.  Consult regional naturalist for recommendations 
concerning interpretive signs. 

C. General Information -- Located and designed to provide information to trail users to assist or improve their 
ability to safely and enjoyably use the trail. 

3.  Traffic 

A. STOP NRM 8.4.1. Location: every traveled public road or railroad crossing. 

 

B.  STOP AHEAD  NRM 8.4.2. Location: should appear 300 feet before traveled public road or 
railroad crossing. 

 

C. DO NOT ENTER  NRM 8.4.4A Location: ski or other trail intersections, one-way trails, 
prohibited areas. 

 

D.  YIELD NRM 8.4.3 Location: intersections with other trails in open areas.  May also 
be used at private trail crossing found on railroad grades. 

 

E.  CAUTION NRM 8.4.5 Location: should be placed prior to all potentially hazardous 
areas such as cliff edges, rock falls, steep hills, congested areas, 
bridges, sharp ditches, sharp curves. 

 

F. REASSURING BLAZER NRM 8.4.7A Location: where needed to reassure trail use is on the right trail, 
more in open areas, less in thick woods.  May also be 
needed at unused road or trail intersections. 

 

G. DIRECTIONAL AND TRAIL JUNCTIONS  

NRM 8.4.8C Location: based on trail junction.  Directional arrows should be 
placed prior to sharp curves and turns; distance will depend on 
anticipated speed of user.  On snowmobile trails, these signs 
should appear at least 50 feet prior to the turn, curve, or junction. 

 

H. SNOWMOBILE SYMBOL 

NRM 8.4.22A Location: start of trail and at trail intersections with other use 
trails.  

 

I. NO SNOWMOBILING NRM 8.5.14B Location: where needed to restrict snowmobile use. 



APPENDIX A 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 35 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 

J. NO MOTORIZED VEHICLE PERMITTED 

NRM 8.4.14 Location where necessary to prohibit use, by   Motorized 
vehicles except snowmobiles. 

 
 

4.  Temporary and Special Signs and Decals 

A. Trail Closed NRM 8.4.4D Location: at points where users could enter the trail. 

 

 B.  Handicapped Accessible No number available 

 Location: trailhead and facilities. 

 

 C.  Grant-In-Aid NRM 8.5.7 Location: at intersections of DNR and GIA trails, also at GIA 
trail heads. 

 

 D.  Mileage Markers (optional) Location: at intervals of miles and/or kilometers.  Mileage markers can be very 
helpful to the trail user and manager.  They let trail users know 
the distance they have traveled or must travel to return to the 
trailhead.  They can help the manager easily identify 
maintenance problem areas and can also be useful to help locate 
injured or stranded trail users. 

No number available 

 

 E.  Caution Truck Hauling NRM 8.4.9 Placed to provide warnings where logging or other trucks cross 
or share trail treadway. 

 

 F.  Stay on Trail NRM 8.2.20 Placed in areas where trespass from trail or environmental 
impacts are of concern. 

 
 G. Ski Pass Required NRM 8.5.24 Place at all entry points to ski trails supported by state funds. 
 



APPENDIX B 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 36 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

SNOWMOBILE TRAIL SECTION OF THE “TRAIL PLANNING, 

DESIGN, AND DEVELOPMENT GUIDELINES”  



APPENDIX B 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 37 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 
 
 



APPENDIX B 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 38 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 



APPENDIX B 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 39 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 
 
 



APPENDIX B 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 40 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 
 



APPENDIX B 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 41 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 
 
 



APPENDIX B 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 42 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 
 
 



APPENDIX B 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 43 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 
 
 



APPENDIX C 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 44 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

GIA Trail Proposal Review Process  (12/1/05 version) 

STEP 
DNR Review Timeline  

at least additional 

Preliminary project discussions – early coordination w/Trails & Waterways 

� Club develops initial concept 

Depends on 
club 

 

 

� Area T&W Supervisor provides GIA Manual, reviews environmental checklist w/club and checks Natural 
Heritage ArcView layer 

 

� Club discusses concept w/ key project partners, selected landowners, other interest groups, prepares draft project 
proposal 

 

1. T&W review of draft project proposal: 1.5 months   

� Area T&W Supervisor reviews draft proposal, discussed w/club 

1.5 mo 

 

� Club modifies proposal and secures a local government sponsor  

� If proposal is a minor* snowmobile or ski trail project with no identified potential impacts, go to Step 5  

2. Area Team Screen of Project Proposal: Fast Track possible? 1 month 

� Area Team/Reg Eco staff screen proposal for red flag issues (in-office)  

1 mo 

 

♦ Determine if more in-depth review needed  

♦ Identify additional information DNR staff will need for review  

♦ Review of trail alignment by Natural Heritage Program  

♦ Discuss with club, potentially revise proposal to avoid or mitigate issues  

� If no further review needed, go to Public Notification (Step 4a) or EAW (Step 4b)  

� If further review needed, go to Step 3  

3. Project Proposal Review: 5 – 10 months (start date depends on RMT assigned schedule) 

� Reg T&W Manager prioritizes project proposals. RMT agrees on list/schedule for field review 1 mo  

� Club and T&W gathers additional information needed for field review as identified in Area Team screen (step 2) 1 mo  

� Area Team meets and reviews proposal, complete Rapid Environmental Assessment Checklist, prepare 
comments 

1.5 mo  

♦ Internal issues resolved by RMT/OHVPC (as needed)  1 - 2 mo  

� Area Team meets w/club to discuss comments and suggested changes 0.5 mo  

� Club/T&W solicits additional input from public/interest groups to address issues or increase awareness of 
proposal (as needed) 

 1 mo 

� Club prepares revised proposal  1 mo+ 

� RMT reviews proposal & Team comments, meet to accept or deny  

1 mo 

 

� If proposal accepted  

• Go to Public Notification (Step 4a), or  

• Go to EAW (Step 4b)  

4a. Public Notification: 2 month 

� 30 day public comment period on final proposal accepted by Department 

2 mo 

 

� Summarize comments, review by Area Team, RMT   

� If no further changes needed, go to Grant Application (Step 5)  

4b. Prepare EAW: 4 to 6 months 

� Prepare draft EAW 

4 mo 6 mo 

� Public comment period 

� Determine if EIS is needed 

♦ If so, go to EIS (Step 4c) 

♦ If not, go to Grant Application (Step 5) 

4c. Prepare EIS: 1 to 1.5 years 1 yr  

5. Grant Application, Funding Allocation 2 mo  

6. Project Permitting and Construction 1 yr  

7. Monitoring and Enforcement --  

                                                 
*
Less than 1 continuous mile of re-route/5 miles of trail; less than one continuous mile of trail; trails on agricultural land or frozen water; or designating existing trails 

for use by cross-country skiers or snowmobiles  



APPENDIX D 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 45 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

MINNESOTA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY BOARD 
Adopted Permanent Rules Relating to Mandatory EAW Categories and Exemptions 

[ NOTE: The final adopted rule was published in the Minnesota State Register (29 SR 571 & 30 SR 319) and took effect Oct. 1, 2005 ] 

 

4410.4300 Mandatory EAW categories 
Subp. 37.  Recreational trails.  If a project listed in items A to F will be built on state-owned land or funded, in whole or part, by 
grant-in-aid funds administered by the DNR, the DNR is the RGU.  For other projects, if a governmental unit is sponsoring the 
project, in whole or in part, that governmental unit is the RGU.  If the project is not sponsored by a unit of government, the RGU is the 
local governmental unit.  For purposes of this subpart, “existing trail” means an established corridor in current legal use. 

 
A. Constructing a trail at least 10 miles long on forested or other naturally-vegetated land for a recreational use other than 
snowmobiling or cross-country skiing, unless exempted by part 4410.4600, subpart 14, Item D, or constructing a trail at least 20 
miles long on forested or other naturally-vegetated land exclusively for snowmobiling or cross-country skiing. 

B. Designating at least 25 miles of an existing trail for a new motorized recreational use other than snowmobiling. 
 
In applying items A and B, if a proposed trail will contain segments of newly constructed trail and segments that will follow an 
existing trail but be designated for a new motorized use, an EAW must be prepared if the sum of the quotients obtained by dividing 
the length of the new construction by 10 miles and the length of the existing but newly designated trail by 25 miles, equals or 
exceeds one.   
 
C. Paving 10 or more miles of an existing unpaved trail, unless exempted by part 4410.4600, subpart 27, item B or F.  Paving an 
unpaved trail means to create a hard surface on the trail with a material impervious to water. 
 
D. Constructing an off-highway vehicle recreation area of 80 or more acres, or expanding an off-highway vehicle recreation area by 
80 or more acres, on agricultural land or forested or other naturally-vegetated land. 
 
E. Constructing an off-highway vehicle recreation area of 640 or more acres, or expanding an off-highway vehicle recreation area 
by 640 or more acres, if the land on which the construction or expansion is carried out is not agricultural, is not forested or 
otherwise naturally-vegetated, or has been significantly disturbed by past human activities such as mineral mining. 
 
F. Some recreation areas for off-highway vehicles may be constructed partially on agricultural naturally-vegetated land and partially 
on land that is not agricultural, is not forested or otherwise naturally-vegetated, or has been significantly disturbed by past human 
activities.  In that case, an EAW must be prepared if the sum of the quotients obtained by dividing the number of acres of 
agricultural or naturally-vegetated land by 80 and the number of acres of land that is not agricultural, is not forested or otherwise 
naturally vegetated, or has been significantly disturbed by past human activities by 640, equals or exceeds one.   

 

4410.4600 EXEMPTIONS 
Subp. 27.  Recreational trails.  The projects listed in items A to F are exempt.  For purposes of this subpart, “existing trail” means an 
established corridor in current legal use. 
 

A. Rerouting less than 1 continuous mile of a recreational trail if the reroute is necessary to avoid sensitive areas or to alleviate 
safety concerns.  Multiple reroutes on the same trail must be treated as independent projects, except that where the cumulative 
length of currently proposed reroutes exceeds one mile on any five-mile segment of trail, as measured along the rerouted trail, those 
reroutes are not exempt. 
 
B. Reconstructing, rehabilitating, or maintaining an existing trail involving no changes in designated use. 
 
C. Constructing less than one continuous mile of trail for use by snowmobiles or cross-country skiers. 
 
D. Constructing a trail for winter-only use across agricultural land or across frozen water. 
 
E. Designating an existing trail for use by snowmobiles or cross-country skiers. 
 
F. Constructing or rehabilitating a non-motorized trail within the Twin Cities Metropolitan Regional Park System. 



APPENDIX D 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 46 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

(This Page for Reference Only) 
 

‘EXISTING TRAIL’ - DEFINITION 
For purposes of Subpart 37, "existing trail" means an established corridor in current legal use (MR 4410.4300, Subp. 37.  Recreational 

trails).  This definition does not apply to designated State Forest Roads which are, by definition, open to vehicular use.   
 

As regards forest classification, motor vehicles (including OHV’s, but not snowmobiles) may be operated on forest roads that are not 
posted closed in forests classified managed and limited, but not in a forest classified as closed (MR 6100.1950 Motor Vehicles and 

Snowmobiles, Forest Lands).  An ATV may be ridden on a township road or city street unless prohibited by resolution or ordinance, 
or in the ditch or the outside bank or slope of a trunk, county state-aid, or county highway (MS 84.928 Operation requirements; local 

regulation.). 
 

4410.4300  MANDATORY EAW CATEGORIES. 
Subpart 1. Threshold test. An EAW must be prepared for projects that meet or exceed the threshold of any of subparts 2 to 37, unless 
the project meets or exceeds any thresholds of part 4410.4400, in which case an EIS must be prepared.  If the proposed project is an 
expansion or additional stage of an existing project, the cumulative total of the proposed project and any 
existing stages or components of the existing project must be included when determining if a threshold is met or exceeded if 
construction was begun within three years before the date of application for a permit or approval from a governmental unit for the 
expansion or additional stage but after April 21, 1997, except that any existing stage or component that was reviewed under a 
previously completed EAW or EIS need not be included. 
 
Multiple projects and multiple stages of a single project that are connected actions or phased actions must be considered in total when 
comparing the project or projects to the thresholds of this part and part 4410.4400. 
 

4410.4600, EXEMPTION CATEGORIES.       
Subp 2.  Standard Exemptions     The following projects are standard exemptions:  (any project)  

A.  projects for which no governmental decisions are required;  
 
B.  projects for which all governmental decisions have been made.  However, this exemption does not in any way alter the 
prohibitions on final governmental decisions to approve a project under part 4410.3100;  
 
C.  projects for which, and so long as, a governmental unit has denied a required governmental approval;  
 
D.  projects for which a substantial portion of the project has been completed and an EIS would not influence remaining 
implementation or construction; and  
 
E.  projects for which environmental review has already been initiated under the prior rules or for which environmental review is 
being conducted pursuant to part 4410.3600 or 4410.3700.   

 
Subp. 14.  Highway Projects.  The following projects are exempt:  (trail-related excerpt)  

D.  Roadway landscaping, construction of bicycle and pedestrian lanes, paths, and facilities within existing right-of-way are exempt.  
 
Subp. 22.  Land Use.  The following projects are exempt:   (any project)  

A.  Individual land use variances, including minor lot line adjustments and side yard and setback variances not resulting in the 
creation of a new subdivided parcel of land or any change in land use character or density, are exempt.  
 
B.  Minor temporary uses of land having negligible or no permanent effect on the environment are exempt.  
 
C.  Maintenance of existing landscaping, native growth, and water supply reservoirs, excluding the use of pesticides, is exempt.  

 
[For full text see MN Rules Chapter 4410.0200 – 4410.7500, Rules governing the Minnesota Environmental Review Program] 

 
 
EQBFINAL.DOC 

Rev. 28 Nov 05 

FFI: Brian McCann, MN DNR Trails & Waterways, 651/259-5627 



APPENDIX D 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 47 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 



APPENDIX E 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 48 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

GUIDELINES FOR “TWO-WAY NIGHTTIME OPERATION OF 

SNOWMOBILES IN ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAYS” 
 
In the 2004 and 2005 Legislative Sessions Minnesota Statutes 84.87 was amended to allow the Minnesota 
Department of Transportation (Mn/DOT) to permit two-way operation between the hours of one-half hour after 
sunset to one-half hour before sunrise (nighttime) of snowmobiles on either side of a trunk highway right-of-
way, and to allow a road authority to permit two-way nighttime operation of snowmobiles on either side of a 
street or highway right-of-way. The law states that this will only be allowed if Mn/DOT or the road authority 
determines that the two-way operation will not endanger users of the street or highway or riders of the 
snowmobiles using the trail.  
 
Discussions with the legislative committee, the DNR, the Department of Public Safety (DPS), and Mn/DOT 
determined that the intent of the two-way nighttime snowmobile operations was to be the exception and should 
be granted only when there is a compelling safety reason and usually for trail distances no more than half a mile. 
In addition, allowing two-way nighttime operation should not endanger road or snowmobile trail users. 
 
If a grant-in-aid snowmobile club has a section of trail within a road authority’s right-of-way and would like to 
pursue approval for two-way nighttime operation the club will need to complete the following: 
 
1. Determine the section of trail in question and evaluate the safety benefit of allowing two-way nighttime 

operation.  
 
2. Work with the grant-in-aid local government sponsor, as any permit (e.g., Limited Use Permit from 

Mn/DOT) would be to the sponsor and the sponsor would be the entity required to request the permit. If 
the sponsor is also the road authority, the club should work within the local government and 
communicate with their usual contact who should be able to direct the process within that government 
entity. 

 
3. Make the official request for the permit to allow two-way nighttime operation on the specific section of 

trail. The following needs to be completed based on whether the road authority is Mn/DOT or a 
township, city, county or other local unit of government. 

 
a. If road authority is Mn/DOT: Contact the Mn/DOT District Office, where the local government 

sponsor applies for the permit. Below is a summary of the Mn/DOT process. For more 
information please see the Mn/DOT letter below. 

i. The Mn/DOT District Traffic Engineer and Maintenance Engineer will review the permit 
application and contact the appropriate DNR Regional Enforcement Supervisor and DPS 
District Commander for their input and decide to approve or deny the permit.  

ii. If the permit is approved, the District Traffic Engineer should send a copy to the DNR 
Regional Enforcement Supervisor and the DPS District Commander who will then inform 
their officers of the permit. 

iii. If the permit is approved, the club should contact their local DNR Trails and Waterways 
Area Supervisor to obtain proper signage for this section of trail (see Mn/DOT letter for 
sign specifics). 

iv. The sign is intended to alert trail users of the two-way snowmobile trail and should be 
placed consistent with trail signs.  Mn/DOT is responsible for traffic signs for highway 
vehicles. 

 



APPENDIX E 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 49 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 
 

b. If road authority is township, city, county, or other local unit of government: Contact the road 
authority, where the grant-in-aid sponsor applies for permission for two-way nighttime operation 
on the specific section of trail. Each road authority may have a different process, and the sponsor 
and club will need to work within each road authority’s process for approving two-way nighttime 
operation. If the local road authority has given permission, the following will need to be 
completed. 

i. The DNR Regional Enforcement Supervisor and local law enforcement will need a copy 
of the permit and be made aware of the section of trail that is permitted. 

ii. The club should contact their local DNR Trails and Waterways Area Supervisor to obtain 
proper signage for this section of trail. 

iii. The sign is intended to alert trail users of the two-way snowmobile trail and should be 
placed consistent with trail signs.  The Road Authority is responsible for traffic signs for 
highway vehicles. 
 

In sum, in order to gain a permit for two-way nighttime operation of a snowmobile trail within the right-of-way 
of a state or local road the club needs to work with their grant-in-aid government sponsor to contact the 
appropriate road authority. Below you will find relevant statute and subdivision and more information about the 
official Mn/DOT approval process.  
 

2006 Minnesota Statutes [Excerpt Subd. 1]  
http://ros.leg.mn/bin/getpub.php?pubtype=STAT_CHAP_SEC&year=current&section=84.87 
 

84.87 OPERATION; REGULATIONS BY POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS. 
    Subdivision 1. Operation on streets and highways. (a) No person shall operate a  
snowmobile upon the roadway, shoulder, or inside bank or slope of any trunk, county state-aid,  
or county highway in this state and, in the case of a divided trunk or county highway, on the  
right-of-way between the opposing lanes of traffic, except as provided in sections 84.81 to 84.90.  
No person shall operate a snowmobile within the right-of-way of any trunk, county state-aid, or  
county highway between the hours of one-half hour after sunset to one-half hour before sunrise,  
except on the right-hand side of such right-of-way and in the same direction as the highway traffic  
on the nearest lane of the roadway adjacent thereto. No snowmobile shall be operated at any time  
within the right-of-way of any interstate highway or freeway within this state. 
(b) Notwithstanding any provision of paragraph (a) to the contrary: 
(1) under conditions prescribed by the commissioner of transportation, the commissioner of  
transportation may allow two-way operation of snowmobiles on either side of the trunk highway  
right-of-way where the commissioner of transportation determines that two-way operation will  
not endanger users of the trunk highway or riders of the snowmobiles using the trail; 
(2) under conditions prescribed by a local road authority as defined in section 160.02,  
subdivision 25 , the road authority may allow two-way operation of snowmobiles on either side of  
the right-of-way of a street or highway under the road authority's jurisdiction, where the road  
authority determines that two-way operation will not endanger users of the street or highway  
or riders of the snowmobiles using the trail; 
(3) the commissioner of transportation under clause (1) and the local road authority under  
clause (2) shall notify the commissioner of natural resources and the local law enforcement  
agencies responsible for the streets or highways of the locations of two-way snowmobile trails  
authorized under this paragraph; and 
(4) two-way snowmobile trails authorized under this paragraph shall be posted for two-way  
operation at the authorized locations. 
(c) A snowmobile may make a direct crossing of a street or highway at any hour of the day  



APPENDIX E 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 50 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

provided: 
(1) the crossing is made at an angle of approximately 90 degrees to the direction of the  
highway and at a place where no obstruction prevents a quick and safe crossing; and 
(2) the snowmobile is brought to a complete stop before crossing the shoulder or main  
traveled way of the highway; and 
(3) the driver yields the right-of-way to all oncoming traffic which constitutes an immediate  
hazard; and 
(4) in crossing a divided highway, the crossing is made only at an intersection of such  
highway with another public street or highway; and 
(5) if the crossing is made between the hours of one-half hour after sunset to one-half hour  
before sunrise or in conditions of reduced visibility, only if both front and rear lights are on; and 
(6) a snowmobile may be operated upon a bridge, other than a bridge that is part of the main  
traveled lanes of an interstate highway, when required for the purpose of avoiding obstructions to  
travel when no other method of avoidance is possible; provided the snowmobile is operated in  
the extreme right-hand lane, the entrance to the roadway is made within 100 feet of the bridge  
and the crossing is made without undue delay. 
(d) No snowmobile shall be operated upon a public street or highway unless it is equipped  
with at least one headlamp, one tail lamp, each of minimum candlepower as prescribed by rules of  
the commissioner, reflector material of a minimum area of 16 square inches mounted on each side  
forward of the handle bars, and with brakes each of which shall conform to standards prescribed  
by rule of the commissioner pursuant to the authority vested in the commissioner by section  
84.86, and each of which shall be subject to approval of the commissioner of public safety. 
(e) A snowmobile may be operated upon a public street or highway other than as provided  
by paragraph (c) in an emergency during the period of time when and at locations where snow  
upon the roadway renders travel by automobile impractical. 
(f) All provisions of chapters 169 and 169A shall apply to the operation of snowmobiles  
upon streets and highways, except for those relating to required equipment, and except those  
which by their nature have no application. Section 169.09 applies to the operation of snowmobiles  
anywhere in the state or on the ice of any boundary water of the state. 
(g) Any sled, trailer, or other device being towed by a snowmobile must be equipped with  
reflective materials as required by rule of the commissioner. 
    Subd. 1a. Organized contests, use of highways, etc. Nothing in this section or chapter  
169 shall prohibit the use of snowmobiles within the right-of-way of any state trunk or county  
state-aid highway or upon public lands or waters under the jurisdiction of the commissioner of  
natural resources, in any organized contest, subject to the consent of the official or board having  
jurisdiction over the highway or public lands or waters. 
In permitting such contest, the official or board having jurisdiction may prescribe such  
restrictions or conditions as they may deem advisable. 
 



APPENDIX E 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 51 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual  



APPENDIX E 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 52 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 



APPENDIX F 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 53 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

LANDOWNER LIABILITY STATUTES 
Civil Liability Limitations 

Minnesota Statute 604A.20 through 604A.27 

 
 
604A.20 POLICY. 

It is the policy of this state, in furtherance of the public health and welfare, to encourage 
and promote the use of land owned by a municipal power agency and privately owned lands and 
waters by the public for beneficial recreational purposes, and the provisions of sections 604A.20 
to 604A.27 are enacted to that end. 
History: 1994 c 623 art 4 s 1; 1999 c 183 s 1 

 

 

604A.21 RECREATIONAL LAND USE; DEFINITIONS. 

Subdivision 1. General. For the purposes of sections 604A.20 to 604A.27, the terms defined 
in this section have the meanings given them, except where the context clearly indicates otherwise. 
Subd. 2. Charge. "Charge" means any admission price asked or charged for services, 
entertainment, recreational use, or other activity or the offering of products for sale to the 
recreational user by a commercial for profit enterprise directly related to the use of the land. 
Subd. 2a. Dedicated. "Dedicated" means made available by easement, license, permit, or 
other authorization. 
Subd. 3. Land. "Land" means any of the following which is privately owned or leased or 
in which a municipal power agency has rights: land, easements, rights-of-way, roads, water, 
watercourses, private ways and buildings, structures, and other improvements to land, and 
machinery or equipment when attached to land. 
Subd. 4. Owner. "Owner" means the possessor of a fee interest or a life estate, tenant, lessee, 
occupant, holder of a utility easement, or person in control of the land. 
Subd. 5. Recreational purpose. "Recreational purpose" includes, but is not limited to, 
hunting; trapping; fishing; swimming; boating; camping; picnicking; hiking; rock climbing; 
cave exploring; bicycling; horseback riding; firewood gathering; pleasure driving, including 
snowmobiling and the operation of any motorized vehicle or conveyance upon a road or upon 
or across land in any manner, including recreational trail use; nature study; water skiing; winter 
sports; and viewing or enjoying historical, archaeological, scenic, or scientific sites. "Rock 
climbing" means the climbing of a naturally exposed rock face. "Cave exploring" means the 
planned exploration of naturally occurring cavities in rock, including passage through any 
structures placed for the purpose of safe access, access control, or conservation, but does not 
include the exploration of other manmade cavities such as tunnels, mines, and sewers. 
Subd. 6. Recreational trail use. "Recreational trail use" means use on or about a trail, 
including but not limited to, hunting, trapping, fishing, hiking, bicycling, skiing, horseback riding, 
snowmobile riding, and motorized trail riding. 
History: 1994 c 623 art 4 s 2; 1999 c 183 s 2-4; 2005 c 148 s 1 

 



APPENDIX F 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 54 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 

604A.22 OWNER'S DUTY OF CARE OR DUTY TO GIVE WARNINGS. 

Except as provided in section 604A.25, an owner who gives written or oral permission for 
the use of the land for recreational purposes without charge: 
(1) owes no duty of care to render or maintain the land safe for entry or use by other persons 
for recreational purpose; 
(2) owes no duty to warn those persons of any dangerous condition on the land, whether 
patent or latent; 
(3) owes no duty of care toward those persons except to refrain from willfully taking action 
to cause injury; and 
(4) owes no duty to curtail use of the land during its use for recreational purpose. 
History: 1994 c 623 art 4 s 3 

 

 

604A.23 OWNER'S LIABILITY. 

An owner who gives written or oral permission for the use of the land for recreational 
purposes without charge does not by that action: 
(1) extend any assurance that the land is safe for any purpose; 
(2) confer upon the person the legal status of an invitee or licensee to whom a duty of 
care is owed; or 
(3) assume responsibility for or incur liability for any injury to the person or property caused 
by an act or omission of the person. 
History: 1994 c 623 art 4 s 4 

 

 

604A.24 LIABILITY; LEASED LAND, WATER-FILLED MINE PITS; MUNICIPAL 

POWER AGENCY LAND. 

Unless otherwise agreed in writing, sections 604A.22 and 604A.23 also apply to the duties 
and liability of an owner of the following land: 
(1) land leased to the state or any political subdivision for recreational purpose; or 
(2) idled or abandoned, water-filled mine pits whose pit walls may slump or cave, and to 
which water the public has access from a water access site operated by a public entity; or 
(3) land of which a municipal power agency is an owner and that is used for recreational 
trail purposes, and other land of a municipal power agency which is within 300 feet of such 
land if the entry onto such land was from land that is dedicated for recreational purposes or 
recreational trail use. 
History: 1994 c 623 art 4 s 5; 1999 c 183 s 5 

 



APPENDIX F 

 

Revised 10/19/2009 Page 55 of 55 Snowmobile GIA Maintenance and Grooming Manual 

 

604A.25 OWNER'S LIABILITY; NOT LIMITED. 

Except as set forth in this section, nothing in sections 604A.20 to 604A.27 limits liability 
that otherwise exists: 
(1) for conduct which, at law, entitles a trespasser to maintain an action and obtain relief 
for the conduct complained of; or 
(2) for injury suffered in any case where the owner charges the persons who enter or go on 
the land for the recreational purpose, except that in the case of land leased or dedicated to the state 
or a political subdivision, any consideration received from the state or political subdivision by the 
owner for the lease or dedication is not considered a charge within the meaning of this section. 
Except for conduct set forth in section 604A.22, clause (3), a person may not maintain an 
action and obtain relief at law for conduct referred to by clause (1) in this section if the entry 
upon the land is incidental to or arises from access granted for the recreational trail use of land 
dedicated, leased, or permitted by the owners for recreational trail use. 
History: 1994 c 623 art 4 s 6; 1999 c 183 s 6 

 

 

604A.26 LAND USER'S LIABILITY. 

Nothing in sections 604A.20 to 604A.27 relieves any person using the land of another for 
recreational purpose from any obligation that the person may have in the absence of sections 
604A.20 to 604A.27 to exercise care in use of the land and in the person's activities on the land, 
or from the legal consequences of failure to employ that care. 
History: 1994 c 623 art 4 s 7 

 

 

604A.27 DEDICATION; EASEMENT. 

No dedication of any land in connection with any use by any person for a recreational 
purpose takes effect in consequence of the exercise of that use for any length of time except as 
expressly permitted or provided in writing by the owner, nor shall the grant of permission for the 
use by the owner grant to any person an easement or other property right in the land except as 
expressly provided in writing by the owner. 
History: 1994 c 623 art 4 s 8 



ITEM #

* Required Fields

Comm. Motion Motion

(First) (Second) Yes No Abstain
Swanson Passed
Johnston
Foldesi Failed
Falk

Walker Tabled

Safety Comm

Jeff Pelowski will meet with the board to request approval of a three year Safety and Health 
Proposal with Safety Compliance Services.  The proposal is attached for your review.

*Financial Consideration:

 

*Background (Provide sufficient detail of the subject):

*Legal Consideration:

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

*Person Responsible for Request *Department *Board Meeting Date

*Subject Title (As it will appear on the agenda):

Approve Three Year Safety and Health Proposal with Safety Compliance Services

Teresa Klein, Board Clerk  ATTEST:

Board Action:

Vote Vote Result

*Other Consideration:

 

Coordinator's Office Use (Do Not Write Below)

Date Received:

 
Comments:

*Resolution (Wording should reflect the intent of the Board vote):

Pelowski, Jeff Environmental Services Jul 13 2010









ITEM #

* Required Fields

Comm. Motion Motion

(First) (Second) Yes No Abstain
Swanson Passed
Johnston
Foldesi Failed
Falk

Walker Tabled

*Other Consideration:

 

Coordinator's Office Use (Do Not Write Below)

Date Received:

 
Comments:

*Resolution (Wording should reflect the intent of the Board vote):

Teresa Klein, Board Clerk  ATTEST:

Board Action:

Vote Vote Result

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

*Person Responsible for Request *Department *Board Meeting Date

*Subject Title (As it will appear on the agenda):

Pohlitz Township Property Tax Issue (Ditch Tax Issue)

Discussion 1

Attached is a letter from Kurt Deter for you to review regarding this matter.

*Financial Consideration:

 

*Background (Provide sufficient detail of the subject):

*Legal Consideration:

Klein, Trish Coordinator Jul 13 2010









ITEM #

* Required Fields

Comm. Motion Motion

(First) (Second) Yes No Abstain
Swanson Passed
Johnston
Foldesi Failed
Falk

Walker Tabled

Discussion 3

Commissioner Johnston will give the Board an update on the NRWD Area Arts Council.

*Financial Consideration:

 

*Background (Provide sufficient detail of the subject):

*Legal Consideration:

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

*Person Responsible for Request *Department *Board Meeting Date

*Subject Title (As it will appear on the agenda):

Northwest Regional Development Area Arts Council

Teresa Klein, Board Clerk  ATTEST:

Board Action:

Vote Vote Result

*Other Consideration:

 

Coordinator's Office Use (Do Not Write Below)

Date Received:

 
Comments:

*Resolution (Wording should reflect the intent of the Board vote):

Klein, Trish Coordinator Jul 13 2010



ITEM #

* Required Fields

Comm. Motion Motion

(First) (Second) Yes No Abstain
Swanson Passed
Johnston
Foldesi Failed
Falk

Walker Tabled

Discussion 4

Commissioner Johnston requested the Board discuss the PILT Task Force meeting 
scheduled for July 26, 2010 in St. Cloud.  An agenda is attached for your review.

*Financial Consideration:

 

*Background (Provide sufficient detail of the subject):

*Legal Consideration:

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

*Person Responsible for Request *Department *Board Meeting Date

*Subject Title (As it will appear on the agenda):

PILT Task Force Meeting July 26, 2010 in St. Cloud

Teresa Klein, Board Clerk  ATTEST:

Board Action:

Vote Vote Result

*Other Consideration:

 

Coordinator's Office Use (Do Not Write Below)

Date Received:

 
Comments:

*Resolution (Wording should reflect the intent of the Board vote):

Klein, Trish Coordinator Jul 13 2010



AMC Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT) Task Force 
July 26, 2010 

St. Cloud Kelly Inn 
http://www.bestwesternstcloud.com/location.php 

Meeting time: 10-2 
(Please RSVP by July 19) 

 
 
10:00     Welcome and introductions 
 
10:15 Overview of why we are here.  Discuss meeting outcomes. 
 
10:30     DNR presentation about the basics of PILT (speaker TBA) 
 
11:15     Overview of current legislative outlook, and questions identified in the recent report by the 

 Office of the Legislative Auditor (OLA) (click here to see the report).  The Task Force will review  
AMC Policy Positions (click here for link to positions), and White Paper to LSOHC.  A discussion  
of the LSOHC 25 year plan will occur. 

 
12:00     Lunch (AMC will provide) 
 
12:45     Task Force PILT Policy Discussion 

The group will spend the remainder of the afternoon discussing answers to questions about the 
purpose and definition of PILT and what it should be utilized for.  If there is time the funding of 
PILT will be discussed. 
 

1:45        Discuss next steps  
 
2:00        Adjourn 
 

http://www.bestwesternstcloud.com/location.php
http://www.auditor.leg.state.mn.us/ped/2010/nrland.htm
http://www.mncounties.org/Intergovernmental_Services/2009-2010%20Policy%20Platform%20as%20Amended.pdf



